
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
July 2, 2015 
6:31 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Richard Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: Victoria Wikle 
  
Staff in Attendance: Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board and 
   Acting General Manager 
   
Others in Attendance:      


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Gaylord Schaap at 6:35 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:35 
p.m.) 


 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:35 p.m.) 
 
Director Robb-Wilder requested that Item III-D (CSDA Board of Directors Election) be removed 
from the Consent Calendar for discussion as an Administrative item.  There were no objections.  
Director Schaap reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 4, 2015 Regular Board Meeting. 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  (None.) 
 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:36 p.m.) 
 


None. 


 1







 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:36 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
III-D. (6:36 p.m.) Approval of Staff Recommendation re Resolution 15-12, Election of 


Directors to the SDRMA Board of Directors.  President Schaap introduced this item.  
Board discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved that the District vote for Bobbi 
Palmer.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-0. 


 
A. (6:42 p.m.) Discussion/Action re RFP results for auditing services for FY 2014-15, 


FY 2015-16, and FY 2016-17.  The Acting GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to accept the proposal of Michael 
Celentano to service as auditor for FY 2014-15, FY 2015-16, and FY 2016-17.  Director 
Holmer seconded.  Brief discussion ensued.  Motion carried 4-0.  


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (6:48 p.m.)  
 
There was no General Manager's report.   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(6:48 p.m.) 


 
Director Lipinski announced that the Sonoma County Grand Jury Report contained an item on 
water sustainability. 
 
Director Lipinski announced that he would be absent at the August meeting. 
 


 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (6:50 p.m.) 


 
(None.)  
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (6:50 p.m.) 
 
1. Actual vs. Budgeted report for FY 14-15 4Q 
2. ADA program 
3. Contract for Audit services 
4. Approval of FY 2015-16 flat charges 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 6:53 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 


 2







 3


APPROVED:  
 


Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:35 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:35 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:36 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:36 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (6:48 p.m.) 

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(6:48 p.m.)



		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (6:50 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
August 6, 2015, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 2, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 
D. Approve Resolution 15-16, Approving a Contract with Michael Celentano, CPA 


for Auditing Services for Fiscal Years 2014-15, 2015-16, and 2016-17 and 
Authorizing the General Manager to Sign 


 
E. Approve Resolution 15-17, to Tax Defer Member Paid (PERS) Contributions -- 


IRC 414(h)(2) Employer Pick-up 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
A. Public hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-13, Overruling Protests and 


Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charge for Sweetwater Springs Water district 
(Est. time 10 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-14, Establishing a Medical Disability Program 


(Est. time 20 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-15, Approving the 2016-23 Capital 


Improvement Program (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re FY 2014-15 4th Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations 


and Capital Expenditures and County Balances (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Rejection of Claim  2015-03. 
      Claimant: Deborah Waller, 17410 Guernewood Lane (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re FY 2014-15 Annual Review (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 


 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Labor Negotiator pursuant to Section 54957.6 
  SSWD Negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Unrepresented positions: Field Manager, Administrative Manager, Crew 


Supervisors (2) 
 
 B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 
  Title: General Manager 
 


 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 


 2







ADJOURN 


 3







 4


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: August 6, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: Resolution 15-16, Approving a Contract for Audit Services with Michael Celentano, 
CPA and Authorizing the General Manager to Sign  
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 15-16.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


$8,000 for each of three fiscal years.  
 
DISCUSSION: 


After the July Board meeting, staff sent a letter of acceptance to Michael Celentano to 
conduct the District’s annual audit for FY 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17.  Mr. Celentano had 
prepared prepared a letter of engagement for the District’s signature. 
 
Staff has reviewed the letter of engagement and finds it acceptable.   
 
It is recommended that the Board approve Resolution 15-16. 
 







Resolution No. 15-16 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT APPROVING A CONTRACT FOR AUDIT SERVICES 


WITH MICHAEL CELENTANO, CPA FOR FYE 2015-17  
 


WHEREAS, pursuant to District Policy 4050.15, “the District Board of Directors shall 
retain an independent auditor to conduct an annual review of District books, records, 
and financial interests; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 30540 (2), the Board shall retain an auditor 
as an independent contractor to conduct an annual audit of the District’s books, records, 
and financial affairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has evaluated the proposed letter contract of Michael 
Celentano, CPA for audit services for FY 2014-15, FY 2015-16, and FY 2016-17 at the 
following rates;  
 


FY ending June 30, 2015 not to exceed $8,000 
FY ending June 30, 2016 not to exceed $8,000 
FY ending June 30, 2017 not to exceed $8,000; and 


 
 
1. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the 


Sweetwater Springs Water District has reviewed the letter contract presented by 
Michael Celentano, CPA dated July 28, 2015, and finds the terms and conditions 
acceptable; and 


 
2. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the General Manager is authorized to sign said 


Contract 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on August 
6, 2015, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 







           
      Gaylord Schaap 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Christine Hanley 
Acting Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 







MICHAEL A. CELENTANO 
Certified Public Accountant 


PO Box 206 
Willow Creek Ca 95573 


                                                             530-629-3015   
 


 


July 28, 2015 


 


Board of Directors  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
PO Box 48 
Guerneville, CA 95446 
 
I am pleased to confirm my understanding of the services I am to provide Sweetwater Springs Water District for 
the year ended June 30, 2015, 2016 and 2017. I will audit the financial statements of the business-type activities 
which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Sweetwater Springs Water District as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2015, 2016 and 2017. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and 
analysis (MD&A), to supplement Sweetwater Springs Water District’s basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements Sweetwater Springs Water District’s, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of my 
engagement, I will apply certain limited procedures to Sweetwater Springs Water District’s RSI in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I 
obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I will not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance.  


Audit Objective 


The objective of my audit is the expression of my opinion as to whether your basic financial statements are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to report on 
the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to 
the financial statements as a whole. My audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and will include tests of the accounting records and other procedures I 
consider necessary to enable me to express such an opinion. I cannot provide assurance that an unmodified 
opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for me to modify my opinion or add 
emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If my opinion on the financial statements is other than unmodified, 
I will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, I am unable to complete the audit or am unable 
to form or have not formed an opinion, I may decline to express an opinion or to issue a report as a result of this 
engagement. 


Management Responsibilities 


Management is responsible for the basic financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all 
representations contained therein. You agree to assume all management responsibilities for any nonattest 
services I provide; oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with 
suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept 
responsibility for them. 


Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including monitoring 
ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 


Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to me and for 
the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing me with (1) access to 
all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 







  


statements, (2) additional information that I may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access 
to persons within the government from whom I determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 


Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming 
to me in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by me 
during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and 
in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 


You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and 
for informing me about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) 
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing me of your knowledge of any allegations 
of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former 
employees, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the entity 
complies with applicable laws and regulations. 


You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. You agree to include my report on the supplementary information in any 
document that contains and indicates that I have reported on the supplementary information. Your responsibilities 
include acknowledging to me in the representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the 
supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) that you believe the supplementary information, 
including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) that the methods of measurement 
or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for 
such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to me any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the 
measurement or presentation of the supplementary information. 


Audit Procedures—General 


An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, my audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the 
areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. I will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) 
fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations 
that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity. 


Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because I will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements 
may exist and not be detected by me, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance 
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial 
misstatements, or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements. However, I will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, any 
fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to my attention. I will also inform the 
appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to my attention, 
unless clearly inconsequential. My responsibility as an auditor is limited to the period covered by my audit and 
does not extend to any later periods for which I am not engaged as auditors. 


My procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, 
and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain 
other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial 
institutions. I will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill 
you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of my audit, I will require certain written representations from 
you about the financial statements and related matters. 


Audit Procedures—Internal Control 


My audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, 
and extent of further audit procedures. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to 
identify deficiencies in internal control. However, during the audit, I will communicate to management and those 
charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA 
professional standards. 


Audit Procedures—Compliance 


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, I will perform tests of Sweetwater Springs Water District’s compliance with the provisions of 







 
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of my audit will not be to provide 
an opinion on overall compliance and I will not express such an opinion. 


Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 


I may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your 
account. I may share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain committed to 
maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, I maintain internal policies, 
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, I will secure 
confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and I will 
take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the 
unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In the event that I am unable to secure an 
appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your 
confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, I will remain responsible for the work 
provided by any such third-party service providers. 


I understand that your employees will prepare all cash or other confirmations I request and will locate any 
documents selected by me for testing. 


The audit for the year ended June 30, 2015, 2016 and 2017 would commence on or about October and would be 
completed no later than January.  Michael A Celentano is the engagement partner and is responsible for 
supervising the engagement and signing the report or authorizing another individual to sign it. My fee for these 
services will be at my standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction, word 
processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that I agree that my gross fee, including expenses will 
not exceed $8,000 for the year ended June 30, 2015, $8,000 for the year ending June 30, 2016 and $8,000 for 
the year ending june 30, 2017. My standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved 
and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. My invoices for these fees will be rendered each 
month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. If I elect to terminate my services for nonpayment, 
my engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if I have not 
completed my report. You will be obligated to compensate me for all time expended and to reimburse me for all 
out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your 
personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If 
significant additional time is necessary, I will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before I incur the 
additional costs. 


I appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Sweetwater Springs Water District and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of my engagement. If you have any questions, please let me know. If you agree 
with the terms of my engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to me. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Michael A. Celentano 
Certified Public Accountant 
 
RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Sweetwater Springs Water District. 
 
 
By:   
 
Title:   
 
Date:   





		Item III-D - Res 15-16 Approving a contract for audit services with Michael Celentano

		$8,000 for each of three fiscal years. 



		Item III-D.1 - RES 15-16 Michael Celentano audit service contract

		Item III-D.2 - Celentano contract






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: August 6, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-17, to Tax Defer Member Paid Contributions to 
PERS Retirement 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 15-17. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
In July of this year a new Union contract went into effect.  One of the changes in 
the new Union contract is that now employees are required to pay for the 
"employee contribution" portion of our PERS retirement costs (equal to 7% of 
base wages).  This change impacts all District employees, not just Union 
employees. 
 
Since July 1, the District has been collecting the employees' share via a tax-
deferred paycheck deduction.   
 
Staff contacted PERS last Friday regarding the details of PERS retirement online 
submission after the July change, and found out at that time we need to have a 
PERS-drafted resolution on file with them designating member paid contributions 
as tax-deferred.   
 
That resolution is Resolution 15-17.  Staff recommends approval.   
 







RESOLUTION TO TAX DEFER MEMBER PAID CONTRIBUTIONS – IRC 414(h)(2) 
EMPLOYER PICK-UP 


 
 


 
WHEREAS, the governing body of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (Name of Agency) has 


the authority to implement the provisions of section 414(h)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code 
(IRC); and 
 


 
WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District (Name of Agency) has determined that even 


though the implementation of the provisions of section 414(h)(2) IRC is not required by law, 
the tax benefit offered by section 414(h)(2) IRC should be provided to All Employees (All 
Employees, or All Employees In A Recognized Group or Class of Employment) who are 
members of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 


I. That the Sweetwater Springs Water District (Name of Agency) will implement the 
provisions of section 414(h)(2) Internal Revenue Code by making employee contributions 
pursuant to California Government Code Section 20691 to the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System on behalf of all its employees or all its employees in a 
recognized group or class of employment who are members of the California Public 
Employees Retirement System. “Employee contributions” shall mean those contributions 
to the Public Employees’ Retirement System which are deducted from the salary of 
employees and are credited to individual employee’s accounts pursuant to California 
Government Code section 20691.   


 


II. That the contributions made by the Sweetwater Springs Water District (Name of Agency) 
to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System, although designated as 
employee contributions, are being paid by the Sweetwater Springs Water District (Name 
of Agency) in lieu of contributions by the employees who are members of the California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System. 
 


III. That employees shall not have the option of choosing to receive the contributed amounts 
directly instead of having them paid by the Sweetwater Springs Water District (Name of 
Agency) to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System. 
 


IV. That the Sweetwater Springs Water District (Name of Agency) shall pay to the California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System the contributions designated as employee 
contributions from the same source of funds as used in paying salary. 
 


V. That the amount of the contributions designated as employee contributions and paid by 
the Sweetwater Springs Water District (Name of Agency) to the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System on behalf of an employee shall be the entire contribution 
required of the employee by the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (California 
Government Code Sections 20000, et seq.). 


VI. That the contributions designated as employee contributions made by Sweetwater 
Springs Water District (Name of Agency) to the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System shall be treated for all purposes, other than taxation, in the same way that 







member contributions are treated by the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the governing body of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (Name 
of Agency) 
 
____________________________  
this day of August 6 (Date), 2015 (Year). 
 
 


BY 
_______________________________________ 
(Signature of Official)   
 
 
_______________________________________ 
(Title of Official)   


RETURN ADDRESS:  
 
 
________________________________________ 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
 
 
________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


FOR CALPERS USE ONLY 
 
 


RESOLUTION TO TAX DEFER MEMBER PAID CONTRIBUTIONS – IRC 414(h)(2) 
 


Approved by: _________________________________  
 
Title: ______________________________ 





		Item III-E - Tax Deferred Member Paid PERS contributions

		Item III-E.1 - Res 15-17 re Tax Defer Member Paid Contributions -- PERS






   
    


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 


TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: August 6, 2015 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING RE ANNUAL FLAT CHARGE  


 
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 Open Public Hearing 
 Take public comment 
 Close Public Hearing 
 Adopt Resolution 15-13, Overruling Protests and Confirming Report 


on the annual Flat Charge at the same level ($198 per connection) 
as last year 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


The FY 2014-15 assessment generated approximately $775,275 in annual 
revenues.  This does not include $52,719 received this year for capacity 
charges on new services constructed, nor does it include interest earned 
on assessment revenue in FY 2014-15. 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


On an annual basis since July 1992, the District has imposed a flat charge 
for each separate water connection to a property.  Currently set at $198 
per water connection, the funds collected are largely used to pay for debt 
service on the original purchase of the water system and facility upgrades.  
Resolution 15-13 keeps the Flat Charge at $198 per connection.    
 
This annual charge is added to the tax bill and collected by the County, 
along with all other county property taxes and assessments.   


 
 







Resolution No. 15-13 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT OVERRULING PROTESTS AND CONFIRMING 


REPORT ON ANNUAL FLAT CHARGE FOR SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 


DISTRICT. 
 


 WHEREAS, this Board did on July 14, 1992, adopt Ordinance No. 8 which 
established an annual flat charge, and authorized collection of such charge on the tax 
roll of the County of Sonoma, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared a written report containing a description of 
each parcel of real property receiving services and facilities from the District and the 
amount of the flat charge for each parcel for the 2015-16 fiscal year, and 
 
 WHEREAS,  said written report has been on file with the Clerk of said District, 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS,  notice appointing the time and place of hearing protests on said 
report was duly given in the manner provided by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all written protests and other written communications were publicly 
read at said meeting and all persons desiring to be heard were fully heard, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 
 
 1. That all objections to and protests against said report have been heard by 
this Board and that said objections and protests be, and each of them is hereby 
overruled. 
 
 2. That said report be, and it is hereby adopted in full with the revisions to 
each charge as specified therein, and that said charges shall be collected on the tax roll 
of the County of Sonoma, in the manner provided by law. 
 
 3. That the Clerk of this District be hereby directed to file with the County 
Auditor of Sonoma County, on or before the 11th day of August, 2015, a copy of said 
report, upon which shall be endorsed over her signature a statement that the report has 
been adopted by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 
DISTRICT. 
 
 4. That the County Auditor of Sonoma County, shall upon receipt of said 
report, enter the amount of the charges against the respective lots or parcels as they 
appear on the assessment roll. 
 


***************************** 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on August 
6, 2015, by the following vote. 







 
Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Christine Hanley  
Acting Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 





		Item V-A Public Hearing, Approve Res 15-13 re Annual Flat Charge

		Meeting Date: August 6, 2015



		Item V-A.1 RES 15-13 Annual Flat Charges






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: August 6, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 15-14, ESTABLISHING A MEDICAL DISABILITY WATER 
RATE PROGRAM AND CHARGES PER POLICY AND PROCEDURE SECTION 
3070.60 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 15-14 which established a medical 
disability water rate program and charges for District customers who meet the listed 
conditions and are certified by a licensed physician. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  small     
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the June 2015 Board Meeting, the Board directed staff to move forward with a water 
rate for customers who have a medical disability that requires additional water.  The 
program proposed by staff has the following characteristics: 
 


 Applicants must use the attached application which is based on the application 
used by Marin Municipal Water District.   


 Applicant's physician must fill out and sign page 2 of the application. 
 Applicant must meet with General Manager to determine amount of extra Tier 1 


water allowed for the disability (up to 4 units maximum). 
 Credit will be calculated once per year (January bills for Monte Rio cycle, 


February bills for Guerneville cycle) to determine credit (amount over Tier 1 use 
within disability credit amount).  This will happen regardless of when the 
customer applies for the credit.   


 Applicant must have a single family residential account in his/her name, spouse's 
name, or family member's name. 


 
District Policies and Procedures Section 3070.60 Assistance Programs,  provide that : 
"the District may establish a program or programs of assistance for 
...disabled...consumers of the District" and allows the criteria for eligibility and other 
terms of the program be set by resolution by the Board of Directors.  Resolution 15-14 
sets out the program and criteria and has the program form attached.    
 
The application does not require annual renewals but does reserve the District's right to 
require reapplication and/or audit of a customer's application.  







Resolution No. 15-14 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ESTABLISHING A MEDICAL DISABILITY  WATER  


PROGRAM AND CHARGES PURSUANT TO CURRENT WATER RATES PER 


POLICY AND PROCEDURES SECTION 3070.60 
  


WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31007, the District Board of Directors is 
authorized to establish rates and charges sufficient to pay for operating expenses, 
provide for repairs and depreciation of works and pay for the principal and interest on 
debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Policies and Procedures Section 3070.60, Assistance 
Programs, the District may establish a program of assistance for disabled consumers, 
and wishes to do so; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has heard testimony for the need for such a program for its 
medically disabled customers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board directed staff to investigate this program and staff have found a 
similar program at the Marin Municipal Water District (MMWD); and   
 
WHEREAS, District staff has based its recommended program on the MMWD program 
and the proposed form on the MMWD form.    
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District approves a medical disability water rate assistance program 
based on the following elements: 
 
Section 1.  The applicant must submit a completed District form attached as Exhibit “A”. 


Section 2.  This program is a pilot program and is subject to change and/or elimiination.  
The General Manager will report on this program as part of the annual review.   


Section 3.  The Disability Water Rate allows for additional water billed at the Tier 1 rate.  
The additional allowance is capped at 4 units (4 hundred cubic feet) but the General 
Manager may allow more if warranted upon Doctor's guidance.   


Section 4.  The Board hereby finds that this Resolution establishes water rate charges 
for the purpose of meeting operating expenses and is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 
21080(b)(8) and CEQA Guidelines Section 15273.   


Section 5.  The Board hereby declares that if any provision, sentence, clause, section or 
part of this Resolution is found to be illegal or invalid, such finding shall affect only such 
provision, sentence, clause, section or part, and shall not affect or impair any of the 
remaining parts.   


Section 6.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on August 
6, 2015, by the following vote. 







Resolution 15-14, Medical Disability Water Rate Charges 2 
August 2, 2015 
 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Gaylord Schaap 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 







Exhibit A: 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


MEDICALLY DISABLED WATER RATE 
 


QUALIFYING CRITERIA 
 


To qualify for the Sweetwater Springs Water District Medically 
Disabled Water Rate Program, you must:  
 


 Establish your disability through doctor verification (form 
attached)  


 Install low-volume showerheads, ULF toilets and faucet 
washers in your home (these items may be available to the 
applicant at no cost);  


 Be a single family residential customer with a meter size no 
larger than 1"; and 


 Have the water service in your name or state the name of the 
account holder and your relationship (apartment complexes or 
mobile home parks with a master meter do not qualify.  


 
Please have your doctor complete the attached application and return 
it to Sweetwater Springs Water District, PO Box 48, Guerneville, CA 
95446.  Your application must include the signed certification from 
your doctor confirming your disability.  
 
Please direct all questions regarding this program to the District 
Office at (707) 869-4000. The District will notify you in writing as to 
whether or not you qualify for this program. Please allow 
approximately three weeks for your application to be processed.  
 
The District reserves the right to request additional information 
from an applicant at any time.  While eligibility does not require 
an annual application, participation in the program can be 
revoked if a recipient of the Medically Disabled Water Rate 
discount program does not meet and continue to meet all 
qualifying criteria. 







EXHIBIT A: SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT   2 
MEDICALLY DISABLED WATER RATE APPLICATION  
 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT  REQUIRES  THAT THE 
APPLICANT’S PHYSICIAN,  WHO IS LICENSED TO PRACTICE MEDICINE IN THE 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COMPLETE THIS FORM. 
 
MEDICAL CONDITION:  
 
I certify that the medical condition and water needs of ________________________, 
                                                                                              (name of patient)  
 
who is a full-time resident at _____________________________, are as described 
below:  
     (address of patient) 
 
In the space below please provide a written description of the applicant’s medical 
condition that requires the use an amount of water greater than the amount 
provided in District’s tier #1 amount (8 units or 6,000 gallons per 2 months (a unit 
is 100 cubic feet, approximately 750 gallons)).  If you need more space, please 
provide the information on a separate page. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If condition is temporary, anticipated recovery date: _______________________ 
 
 
_______________________________________Date  


 
 
______________________________________Doctor's name (please print or type)  
 
 
________________________________________________Doctor’s State License # 
 
 
________________________________________________Doctor's signature 
 
_______________________________________Office address  
 
_______________________________________City, state, zip  
 
_______________________________________Office Telephone Number  


 
 







EXHIBIT A: SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT   3 
MEDICALLY DISABLED WATER RATE APPLICATION  
 
Application for Calendar Year 20___ 
 
The Medically Disabled Water Rate discount will result  in ______ additional Units 
(Hundred cubic feet) being billed at the Tier One base rate per two-month billing cycle.  
Discount will be applied as a credit on the January (Monte Rio Cycle) or February 
(Guerneville Cycle) water bills for the preceding year. 
 
SSWD Customer #:  Date: 


Customer Name: Phone: (    ) 


Address: 
 
 
 
      Street                                     City                              Zip 
 


 If you would like to provide more detail, please provide your signed 
statement on a separate page. 


.   
 





		Item V-B - Disrict Medical Disabaility Water Rates

		Item V-B.1 - Resolution 15-14 - Medical Disability Water Rate

		Item V-B.2 - Ex A. Resolution 15-14 - Medical Disability Water Rate






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: August 6, 2015  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE APPROVAL OF THE REVISED 2016-2023 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM  
  


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 15-15 which adopts the revised 2016-2023 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the June 2015 Board Meeting District staff presented a summary of the as hoc Budget 
Subcommittee review of the District's Capital Improvement Program (CIP) including 
recommendations for revision of the approved CIP.  This review was an outcome of an earlier 
discussion of the CIP in December 2014 and February 2015.   Tim Lipinski and Victoria Wikle 
were appointed to the Subcommittee and the review started shortly after with periodic 
meetings with District staff, General Manager Steve Mack and Field Manager Kevin Gilman.   
 
Items that the Subcommittee addressed included the selection criteria listed below:   
 


 Improved water quality  
 Water losses  
 Potential Liability    


 Age of Pipe 
 Pipe Material 
 Terrain  
 Difficulty of Repair/Maintenance  


 Storage and pressure zone requirements  
 Costs per service  


 
Staff compiled a list of capital projects proposed in various historical documents and then 
edited that list to uncompleted proposed projects and other possible projects that have come 
to the  attention of District staff.  A  review of the historical information shows that the District 
has been diligent in carrying out recommended projects.  Most of the projects suggested and 
analyzed by consulting engineering expertise have been completed.  There are still many 
projects on the list and more are being added. 
 
Table 1 shows the proposed 2016-2023 CIP developed after consideration of the review by the 
ad hoc CIP Subcommittee.  This proposed CIP has taken into consideration the ranking criteria 
and included a through discussion of the historical CIP and all the projects.  The review of the 







2016-2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 2  
August 6, 2015 
 


 


historical capital projects and how they fit into approved CIP's showed that experience in the 
field changed the timing of completing these projects.   
 
A major change in the CIP is the inclusion of the River Road project.  Two leaks associated 
with the water main along River Road near Rio Nido, the pipe material of that main - cast iron 
- the condition of the pipe material when it was excavated for repair, and the fact that it's the 
only supply line into Rio Nido have moved this project to the top of the list.   
 
Something different with this proposed CIP is a relatively small capital project in FY 2018, 
replacement of the green sand filter at the Monte Rio treatment plant.  In earlier iterations we 
were proposing no capital program in 2018 because a full CIP - in the $1 million range - would 
go into District Policy Reserves and we haven't wanted to do that if not necessary.  The green 
sand filter replacement is a needed project, we have contemplated replacing it for some time - 
at the time of its last rehabilitation in 2010 we discussed that the next rehabilitation would be 
needed in about eight years and would need to be a major effort or a replacement with a 
similar process as used at the Highland treatment plant.  We are recommending replacing it 
with ATEC technology because we have had good experience with it at Highland and because 
the green sand filter technology requires use of potassium permanganate which is a hazardous 
material and requires very careful operation to achieve the needed results.   This capital 
project is not related to any of the main replacement projects; thus no real economy of scale 
exists with other capital projects, and because considerable staff time will be needed to 
oversee this project, we agreed this would be a good 'off-year' project.   
 
Since our discussion in June, we have added the Park Ave. Tank replacement to the Park Ave. 
element of the work scheduled for FY 2019.  This tank is currently having an emergency repair 
to its foundation and that repair is temporary.  Replacement or repair, if possible, of the tank 
would make sense for inclusion the 2019 Park Ave. project. 
 
Table 2 shows the financial model analysis of the proposed CIP.  It includes 3% increases 
in every year and a drop in the Capital Debt Reduction Charge in 2013 because debt 
payments are lower - the State loans are paid off then.  Reserves above District policy are 
negative in 2023, but not by much and there are so many assumptions going into these 
calculations (CDRC dropping by $170,000 is one), that there should be no alarm about 
that negative amount.  The analysis shows that we need to skip FY 21 to avoid going into 
policy reserves, and includes the small CIP in 2018.      
 
The most important recommendation in the proposed CIP is moving forward with the River 
Road water main replacement in FY 2017.  This is a project that has had demonstrated 
leaks, is cast iron with a probable installation date of the 1920'2-1930's.  It could 
catastrophically fail which would cut off water supply to Rio Nido as well as the 70 
customers directly connected to this main.   
 
The other projects in the CIP are our current recommendation based on the information 
we have today.  We will continue with an annual review of the CIP to confirm the current 
Program or make other recommendations as current experience dictates.  
 
Staff will be looking into financing opportunities to assist with funding this CIP.  I have 
heard and read about funding becoming available for projects that reduce system losses, 
but I haven't yet seen details of this becoming available to us.   
 







2016-2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 3  
August 6, 2015 
 


 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Proposed 2016-
2023 CIP Projects by Year     


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost Cost/Service  Comments 
         


2016        


  


Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace approximately 
3,900 ft of existing mainline and 75 services 
along Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Ln., Memory Park 
Rd. $890,000 $11,867  


Contract Awarded 
for $915,433, 
Design, CMI 
$175,000 


  2016 Total $890,000     


2017        


  


Replace approximately 3,500 ft of existing main 
and 70 services on Old River Rd at Morningside 
east to the eastern section of Foothill Drive.  
Include Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive and River 
Rd on river side of the road. Feeds Rio Nido. $985,000 $14,071  


Cost is rough 
estimate, will be 
refined during 
design 


  2017 Total $985,000     


2018        


  


Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand Filter 
Replacement. Serves Monte Rio system (1100 
services) $200,000 NA   


  2018 Total $200,000     


2019        


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 lf of 
main line on Park Ave. and McLane, 37 
services.  Loop two deadend lines. 
Replace/repair Park Ave. Tank $788,000 $21,297    


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 lf of 
main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692    


  2019 Total $914,000 $18,280    


2020        


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278    


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,900 ft of existing 
mainline and 27 associated services along 
Woodland Dr in the main pressure zone.   $400,000 $14,815    


  2020 Total $675,000 $15,000    


2021 Skip Capital Project      


2022        







2016-2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 4  
August 6, 2015 
 


 


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace approximately 
3,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 associated 
services along Highland Way, Sunset Ave, 
Woodland Dr, Laurel Way and Morningside 
Drive.  (requires completion of Schoeneman 
Tank and includes Shoeneman Booster) $814,300 $17,326    


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon storage 
tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000     


  2021 Total $941,300 $20,028    


2023        


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires 
completion of Natoma Tank and includes 
Edgehill Booster) $870,000 $18,511    


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 
gallon storage tank with a 30,000 storage tank.   
2005 cost estimate 


$190,000 


    


  2023 Total $1,060,000 $22,553    


  Total Cost of 2017-2023 Projects $4,675,300     


         


  Other Projects      


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 850 ft 
of main line.  $280,000     


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 ft of 
mainline along Main St. $180,000     


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage tank 
with a nominal capacity of approximately 
120,000 gallons at the District–owned site on 
McLane Avenue. Project to include relocation/ 
construction of the existing hydro-pneumatic 
pump station. $490,000   


wait for Dubrava 
Development? 


  
Total Approximate Cost of Future, 
Unapproved Projects $950,000     


 







2016-2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 5  
August 6, 2015 
 


 


3% Sales Flat


FY14 Actual FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE Reduced WS Flat 10%IncreaseFlat
3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charge 246,360 253,751 261,364 269,205 277,281 285,599 294,167 302,992 312,082 234,300          


Base Rate 35966 1,351,512 1,392,058 1,433,819 1,476,834 1,521,139 1,566,773 1,613,776 1,662,190 1,712,055 1,763,417


Water Usage 589,167 546,157 562,542 637,360 656,481 676,175 696,461 717,354 738,875 761,041


5 Total Water Sales 1,940,679 1,938,215 1,996,361 2,114,194 2,177,620 2,242,949 2,310,237 2,379,544 2,450,930 2,524,458


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,223,005 2,191,966 2,257,725 2,383,399 2,454,901 2,528,548 2,604,404 2,682,536 2,763,013 2,758,758


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 107,484 107,071 108,911 110,788 112,702 114,655 116,647 118,679 120,751 122,865


8 Total Income 2,330,490 2,299,037 2,366,636 2,494,187 2,567,603 2,643,203 2,721,051 2,801,215 2,883,763 2,881,623


9 EXPENSES
10 763,810 778,066 801,408 825,450 890,210 916,920 944,430 972,760 1,001,940 1,032,000


11 316,700 312,785 324,479 336,764 357,497 371,100 385,286 400,082 415,516 431,616


12 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,078,736 1,090,851 1,125,886 1,162,214 1,247,707 1,288,020 1,329,716 1,372,842 1,417,456 1,463,616
13 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 1%


14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 460,192 524,794 469,442 474,136 478,878 483,666 488,503 493,388 498,322 503,305


15 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,538,928 1,615,645 1,595,328 1,636,350 1,726,585 1,771,686 1,818,219 1,866,231 1,915,778 1,966,921


16 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $791,562 $683,392 $771,308 $857,836 $841,018 $871,517 $902,832 $934,985 $967,985 $914,702


17 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 16,747 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000


18 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 484,725 253,751 261,364          269,205      277,281      285,599        294,167          302,992          312,082         234,300          


19 Tfers to CIRF 537,466 340,000            470,000          470,000      470,000      460,000        510,000          510,000          560,000         550,000          


20 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 1,062,191 633,751 771,364 779,205 787,281 785,599 844,167 852,992 912,082 824,300


21 SURPLUS/DEFICIT -287,377 9,640 -11,056 38,632 42,737 45,917 47,665 41,992 44,903 50,402


22 Capital Budget
23 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
24 Net Operating Revenues** 250,089 349,640 458,944 508,632 512,737 505,917 557,665 551,992 604,903 600,402
25 Assessments 730,176 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000
26 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 484,725       253,751         261,364       269,205    277,281    285,599      294,167        302,992       312,082       234,300       
27 Capital Interest 16,287 30,000           10,000         10,000      10,000      10,000        10,000          10,000         10,000         10,000         
28 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 876,614 750,000            630,000          520,000      600,000        250,000          320,000         540,000          


29 TOTAL REVENUE 2,134,237 2,160,392 2,137,308 2,084,836 1,577,018 2,178,517 1,888,832 1,641,985 2,023,985 2,161,702


30 no debt payment


31 Total Debt Payments 1,059,252      988,314            1,038,300       1,038,300   1,038,300   1,038,300     1,038,300       1,017,300       847,300         847,300          


32 CIP 2014 CIP 2015 CIP 2016 CIP 2017 CIP 2018 CIP 2019 CIP 2020 CIP 2021 CIP 2022 CIP 2023
33 Annual CIP 1,056,658 1,122,100 1,055,433 1,000,000   200,000 1,096,800     810,000 No Project 1,129,560      1,272,000       


34 In-House Construction Projects 18,328 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
35 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,134,237 2,150,414 2,133,733 2,078,300 1,278,300 2,175,100 1,888,300 1,057,300 2,016,860 2,159,300


36 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 0 9,978 3,575 6,536 298,718 3,417 532 584,685 7,125 2,402


37 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


38 Ending Funds ab District Policy 2,507,800    1,767,778      1,141,353    627,889      926,607      330,024        80,556            665,240          352,366         (185,233)         


39 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 422,026       422,078         469,008       526,536    538,718    540,217      600,532        624,685       856,685       774,402       


*  Starting values based on projected FY13 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


*** =Transfers from CDRC


**** =Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + CDRC + Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Water Rate, CDRC 
Increase =


Table 2.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Proposed CIP 


Total Salary


 







 
Resolution No. 15-15 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE 2016-2023 CAPITAL 


IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 


 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed the overall Capital 
Improvement Program and has established priorities for the upcoming eight year 
period;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, hereby 
adopts the Revised 2016-2023 Capital Improvement Program attached as Exhibit A 
hereto, effective August 6, 2015. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution supercedes and replaces 
Resolution 13-03.   


     
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on August 6, 2015, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Rich Holmer        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Gaylord Schaap 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Christine Hanley 
Acting Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 







Revised 2016-2023 CIP  2 
August 6, 2015 
 


Exhibit A 
 
 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 
 
 


Capital Improvement Program 
2016-2023 


 
Revised August 6, 2015 


 
Board of Directors 
Sukey Robb-Wilder 


Rich Holmer 
Tim Lipinski  


Gaylord Schaap  
Victoria Wikle 


 
General Manager 


Steve Mack 







Revised 2016-2023 CIP  3 
August 6, 2015 
 


 
2014-2019 Sweetwater Springs Water District Capital 


Improvement Program 
January 8, 2013 


 
Capital improvements are an important element of the District’s work effort.  
The District has an aging infrastructure, an unacceptable amount of 
unaccounted for water and District staff spend too much time reacting to leaks 
in the distribution system.  Table 1. 2016-2023 Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP) lists needed District projects by year and includes estimated costs.  The 
ranking criteria for the priority of capital projects are: 
 


 Improved water quality  
 Water losses  
 Potential Liability    


 Age of Pipe 
 Pipe Material 
 Terrain  
 Difficulty of Repair/Maintenance  


 Storage and pressure zone requirements  
 Costs per service  


 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Proposed 2016-
2023 CIP Projects by Year     


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost Cost/Service Comments 
        


2016       


  


Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace 
approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., 
Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $890,000 $11,867 


Contract Awarded 
for $915,433, 
Design, CMI 
$175,000 


  2016 Total $890,000    


2017       


  


Replace approximately 3,500 ft of existing 
main and 70 services on Old River Rd at 
Morningside east to the eastern section of 
Foothill Drive.  Include Orchard Rd and 
Foothill Drive and River Rd on river side of 
the road. Feeds Rio Nido. $985,000 $14,071 


Cost is rough 
estimate, will be 
refined during 
design 


  2017 Total $985,000    


2018       


  


Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand 
Filter Replacement. Serves Monte Rio 
system (1100 services) $200,000 NA   







Revised 2016-2023 CIP  4 
August 6, 2015 
 
  2018 Total $200,000    


2019       


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 
lf of main line on Park Ave. and McLane, 37 
services.  Loop two deadend lines. 
Replace/repair Park Ave. Tank $788,000 $21,297   


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 
lf of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692   


  2019 Total $914,000 $18,280   


2020       


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278   


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV) Replace approximately 1,900 ft of 
existing mainline and 27 associated 
services along Woodland Dr in the main 
pressure zone.   $400,000 $14,815   


  2020 Total $675,000 $15,000   


2021 Skip Capital Project     


2022       


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace approximately 
3,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 
associated services along Highland Way, 
Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, Laurel Way and 
Morningside Drive.  (requires completion of 
Schoeneman Tank and includes 
Shoeneman Booster) $814,300 $17,326   


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon 
storage tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000    


  2021 Total $941,300 $20,028   


2023       


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires 
completion of Natoma Tank and includes 
Edgehill Booster) $870,000 $18,511   


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 
gallon storage tank with a 30,000 storage 
tank.   2005 cost estimate 


$190,000 


   


  2023 Total $1,060,000 $22,553   


  Total Cost of 2017-2023 Projects $4,675,300    







Revised 2016-2023 CIP  5 
August 6, 2015 
 
        


  Other Projects     


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 
850 ft of main line.  $280,000    


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 
ft of mainline along Main St. $180,000    


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage 
tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. 
Project to include relocation/ construction of 
the existing hydro-pneumatic pump station. $490,000  


wait for Dubrava 
Development? 


  
Total Approximate Cost of Future, 
Unapproved Projects $950,000    


 





		Item V-C - Revised 2016-23 CIP

		Meeting Date: August 6, 2015 



		Item V-C.1 RES 15-15 -- Adopting the Revised 2016-2023 Capital Improvement Program






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: August 6, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU JUNE 30, 
2015 (100%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 4th quarter -- end of fiscal year --actual revenues and 
expenses as compared to budgeted.  It should be noted that the budgeted 
amounts reflect the mid-year budget revisions that were approved in March.  
Additionally, every year the budget is drafted to transfer projected surplus 
revenues to our Capital Improvement Revenue Fund (CIRF), leaving just a small 
amount (this year $2,953) as budgeted net operating income.   
 
Good news: In FY 2014-15, after all budgeted transfers, the District showed net 
operating income of $119,836.  This was mostly due to expenses coming in under 
budget. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
4Q Revenue ended the year $21,249.52 (0.9%) more than budgeted (as 
revised by the mid-year budget revisions). 
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, contributed $6,135 to this surplus, 
with most of the remainder in the Miscellaneous Income category from the sale of 
the Woods Avenue parcel in the 1Q ($16,108), and the signing bonus of $6,750 
from Crown Castle for the AT&T/Mt. Jackson lease.   
 
Current Charges - the revenue affected by the State mandate to reduce water 
use - came in at $559,959 which is $15,041 less than the revised budget amount 
of $570,000.  As noted this was made up by the Woods Ave. parcel sale.   
 







Actual vs, Budgeted Thru June 30, 2015 2 
August 6, 2015 


Rent came in at $9,894 less than budgeted, due to arrears from Crystal 
Communications.   
 
4Q Expenditures are $95,634 (5.4%) less than budgeted.  
 
In the 4Q, the District spent $7,500 on SunKay Associates to negotiate 
the Crown Castle (AT&T) lease, and $8,113 on leak detection equipment, 
both unbudgeted. 
 
Even with these unbudgeted expenses, overall expenses were less than 
budgeted.  The largest saving were in the following areas: 
 
 Salaries and Benefits: $60,785 less than budgeted 
 Treatment System/Well Repairs: $5,725 less than budgeted 
 Legal: $4,713 less than budgeted 
 Gas: $5,744 less than budgeted 
 Electricity: $14,250 less than budgeted 
 Vehicles: $26,736 less than budgeted 
 
For more detail on all the budget line items, including line item mid-year budget 
revisions, please refer to the attached Actual vs. Budgeted breakdown provided 
with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 4Q Capital Budget (Table 2) is on track with the Budget - the annual (2015) 
CIP is completed, all revenues are in, and 2016 CIP design expenses have been 
paid, the award of 2016 CIP construction contract has happened but construction 
costs won't come in until the next fiscal year. 
 
Interest was below budget but annual assessment and prior year annual 
assessment revenue were above budget.          
 
All debt payments were made in FY15.  There were no General Obligation 
Bond payments in FY15 because of the settlement agreement with USDA.     
 
$683,000 were needed from Reserves to pay for the capital project - that was 
close to the budgeted amount projected.     
 
Total Capital Expenses without the obligated FY16 CIP construction costs   
show results close to budgeted; approximately $37,000 over budgeted.  The 
FY 16 construction contract awarded in May 2015, but construction did not 
start until July and thus no actual construction costs came out of the FY15 
accounts. 
 
Net Capital Funding came in at approximately $401,000, approximately 
$52,000 higher than budgeted - fairly close to the projection of the revised 
budget.   







Actual vs, Budgeted Thru June 30, 2015 3 
August 6, 2015 


 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 3rd 
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 3rd Quarter.  
Table 3 includes all the funds listed in the County Fund Balances.   







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 1,397,014 1,393,127 3,887 100.28%
4031.11· Current Charges 554,959 570,000 -15,041 97.36% Mid-year budget revision:  $725,894 to $570,000


4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 254,854 253,947 907 100.36%
4031.1 · Other Water Sales Revenue 16,381 0 16,381 100.0%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 2,223,209 2,217,074 6,135 100.28% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,223,209 2,217,074 6,135 100.28%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


1700 · Interest 6,754 7,500 -746 90.05% Reflects interest earnings thru 4Q *
3600 · Construction New Services 13,663 13,000 663 105.1% Mid-year budget revision:  $5,000 to $13,000


3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 2,122 1,000 1,122 212.22%


4032 · Rent 78,456 88,350 -9,894 88.8%   


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 2,495 2,500 -5 99.79%  


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 25,476 1,500 23,976 1,698.37%


In the 1Q, proceeds from the sale of 14335 Woods 
Ave. (to Jardine) were placed here ($16,108).  In the 
4Q, we received a $6,750 signing bonus from Crown 
Castle (AT&T/Mt. Jackson).


*
Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 128,965 113,850 15,115 113.28%


Total Income 2,352,174 2,330,924 21,250 100.91%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages
679,152 716,000 -36,848 94.85% Mid-year budget revision:  $697,038 to $716,000


5912 · Overtime 22,998 30,562 -7,564 75.25%   
5916 · On-Call Pay 30,200 33,090 -2,890 91.27%


5918 · Extra help - Contract 36,919 34,100 2,819 108.27%  
Total Salary 769,269 813,752 -44,483 94.53%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p 1,272 1,272 100.0%
5920 · Retirement 114,526 121,115 -6,589 94.56%
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 14,044 14,067 -23 99.83%


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 129,894 143,249 -13,355 90.68%   
5931 · Retiree Health 10,453 7,000 3,453 149.33% In the 1Q $3,334.01 was was paid to CERBT


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 16,939 18,000 -1,061 94.11%
In the 1Q, expenses include pymt for the FY 2013-14 
audit and FY 2014-15 payments thru the 2Q.  As of 
the 3Q, workers comp has been paid for the year.  


Total Benefits 287,128 303,431 -16,303 94.63%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,056,397 1,117,183 -60,786 94.56%


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2015 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 4







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2015 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 1,819 1,800 19 101.03%
6040-C · Cell Phones 4,728 4,300 428 109.95%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 642 560 82 114.56%
6040-T · Telephones 18,357 19,950 -1,593 92.02%


Total Communications 25,545 26,610 -1,065 96.0%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 27,632 27,000 632 102.34% (In the 1Q, paid for the year)


6102 · Auto/Equipment 4,105 5,200 -1,095 78.94%
Total Insurances 31,737 32,200 -463 98.56%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 25,338 22,000 3,338 115.17%
In the 1Q, $3,628 was spent on backhoe repairs. Mid-
year budget revision:  $14,000 to $22,000 for 
backhoe and dumptruck repairs  


6151 · Office Maintenance 6,220 4,050 2,170 153.57%


 


 
Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 31,558 26,050 5,508 121.14%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 7,185 8,000 -815 89.82%


6100 · SCADA system 33,196 35,000 -1,804 94.85%
 Mid-year budget revision:  $5,000 to $35,000 for 
SCADA software upgrades


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 26,352 24,000 2,352 109.8%  


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 97,275 103,000 -5,725 94.44%


In the 1Q, unbudgeted expenses totalling over 
$14,000 were spent on a Well 5 rehab.  (Well 4 was 
budgeted for rehab this year.)  In addition, problems 
have now been identified at  Well 6.  It is likely that 
this line item will be overbudget this year.  Mid-year 
budget revision: $42,000 to $103,000


 


6143 · Generator Maintenance 2,810 3,200 -390 87.81%


 
 


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 166,818 173,200 -6,382 96.32%


Miscellaneous Expenses


6280 · Memberships 9,486 9,700 -214 97.8%  


6303 · Claims
2,054 1,500 554 136.91%


  
6593 · Governmental Fees 18,872 20,500 -1,628 92.06%


1Q expense includes water system fees, paid twice 
yearlyr, and annual LAFCO costs.  


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 30,412 31,700 -1,288 95.94%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage
16,537 16,000 537 103.36%


  
6430 · Printing Expense 5,206 7,500 -2,294 69.41%   
6461 · Office Supplies 3,973 4,000 -27 99.31%  


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 974 800 174 121.73%


 Page 2 of 4







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2015 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6890 · Computers/Software 2,732 700 2,032 390.36%


In the1Q, the computer server and SM's workstation 
wre replaced as they were both still running on XP 
Pro, no longer supported by Micrsoft.  This was an 
unbudgeted expense of $2,597.22


 
6579 · Furniture 0 500 -500 0.0%


Total Office Expense 29,422 29,500 -78 99.74%


Operating Supplies  


6300 · Chemicals 15,617 17,000 -1,383 91.87% In the 1Q, some chemicals were purchased for the 
year.


6880 · Tools and Equipment 2,938 6,500 -3,562 45.2%  


6881 · Safety Equipment 990 1,000 -10 98.96%
Total Operating Supplies 19,545 24,500 -4,955 79.77%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 2,183 3,400 -1,217 64.2%  


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 12,245 15,000 -2,755 81.64%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 22,565 14,966 7,599 150.77%


1Q expense is the annual fee for labor negotiator.  
Mid-year budget revision: $3,300 to $14,966 to reflect
higher labor negotiator costs.  In the 4Q we paid an 
unbudgeted $7,500 to SunKay to negotiate our AT&T 
Mt. Jackon lease with Crown Castle.


*
6610 · Legal 15,287 20,000 -4,713 76.44%  


6630 · Audit/Accounting 34,572 29,600 4,972 116.8%  


Total Professional Services 86,852 82,966 3,886 104.68%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 2,347 2,000 347 117.33%  


6840 · Building & Warehouse 27,495 27,675 -180 99.35% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.


Total Rents & Leases 29,842 29,675 167 100.56%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 2,898 2,800 98 103.48%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 19,255 25,000 -5,745 77.02%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 5,731 6,400 -669 89.54%


Total Transportation & Travel 27,884 34,200 -6,316 81.53%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 1,230 1,500 -270 82.0%


6021.3 · T-shirts 2,250 1,500 750 150.0% 1Q expense includes T-shirts, purchased once yearly


6021.4 · Jackets 0 240 -240 0.0%
Total Uniforms 3,480 3,240 240 107.41%


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 85,749 100,000 -14,251 85.75%  


7321 · Propane 2,262 4,000 -1,738 56.54%  


Total Utilities 88,011 104,000 -15,989 84.63%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 571,105 597,841 -26,736 95.53%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,627,502 1,715,024 -87,522 94.9%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 7,119 9,000 -1,881 79.1% Mid-year budget revision: $22,000 to $9,000  


 Page 3 of 4







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2015 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 0  0 0 0.0%  


8517 · Field/office equipment 8,113 0 8,113 100.0%
In the 4Q the District purchased leak detection 
equipement (an unbudgeted expense.) *


8573 · Vehicles 35,656 50,000 -14,344 71.31%  


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 50,888 59,000 -8,112 86.25%


Total Expense 1,678,391 1,774,024 -95,634 94.61%


Net Ordinary Income 673,783 556,900 116,883 120.99%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue
253,947 253,947 0 100.0%


  
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 260,000 260,000 0 100.0% Mid-year budget revision: $500,000 to $260,000  
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 0 100.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
553,947 553,947 0 100.0%


  


 Page 4 of 4







1  Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District


FY 2014-15 Capital Program Budget Variances as of June 30, 2015 (100%)


FY 14-15
ACTUAL 


(4Q)
FY 14-15
BUDGET


$ Over 
Budget for 


Year
% of 


Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 52,719 27,000 25,719 195.3%


Annual Assessment (County) 720,216 710,000 10,216 101.4%


Prior Year Assessment 55,059 40,000 15,059 137.6%


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 253,947 253,947 0 100.0%


Interest 11,995 25,000 -13,005 48.0%


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 260,000 260,000 0 100.0%


25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


683,000 695,000 -12,000 98.3%
Cost of CIP above revenue (could be deficit in 
Surplus/Deficit below). 


TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 2,061,937 2,035,947 25,990 101.3%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 0 0 0
No payment this year because of bond 
reissuance


Cap One Revenue Bond 566,508 566,508 0 NA both payments made


Total Bond Payments 566,508 566,508 0 100.0%


State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 -128 99.9% both payments made


Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014 -1 100.0% both payments made


Total Debt Payments 970,693 970,822 -129 100.0% Sum of all debt payments


2014 CIP 1,234 0 1,234


2015 CIP 971,912 1,037,346 -65,434 93.7% Project is completed


2016 CIP 64,917 975,000 -910,083 6.7% Contract awarded in May for $1,024,837


In-House Construction Projects 37,463 25,000 12,463 149.9%


Mapping Project 14,811 0 14,811


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 2,061,030 3,008,168 -947,138 68.5%


2,061,030 2,098,085 -37,055


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 907  -972,221 973,128 -0.1%


Net Capital Funding 401,031 348,077 52,954 115.2%


=Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + 
Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments (FY15 
only); need assessment payment from 
County


Funds from Reserves


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES WO  
Projected 2016 CIP Construction Exp







FY 14-15


Actual4Q


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 303,535 257,254 46,281.31    
corresponds to 
Operations (0100)


Operating Reserve (25% of Operating Exp) 399,812 428,756 (28,944.00)   
corresponds to 
Operating Reserve 0300)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 260,829 242,706 18,123.25    


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
1100)


Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000 -               


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
(1100)


Total District Policy 1,214,177 1,178,716 35,461       
TOTAL Reserves 2,988,435 2,594,683 393,752     


Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,774,258 1,415,968 358,290


Difference between Total 
and Policy Reserves


DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF (7106-0600) 529,149         97,033       432,116
OPERATIONS (0100) 303,535      257,254     46,281
OPERATING RESERVE (0300) 399,812         428,756     -28,944
CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY RESERVE 
(1100) 510,829      492,706     18,123
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (0500) 104,315         118,106     -13,791
BUILDING (0200) 165,850      165,850     0
CAP ONE BOND AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200) 804,505      800,522     3,983
FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS (0400) -                64,284       -64,284
STATE LOANS (0700, 0900) 170,438          170,172 266


STATE LOANS RESERVES (0800,1000)
171,370         


171,370     0


Restricted to last payment for 
State Loans; not included in 
Total Reserves


2,988,435   2,594,683  393,752


DISTRICT RESERVES AND FUND BALANCES (3Q)
District Policy Reserves


Total Funds Available 


Table 3.  FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (3Q)
14-15 Budget 


(Revised)
Difference 


Actual-FY15 Comments







 


County Balances FY 2014-15
 


$15,296.65 $323,402.68 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $116,778.72 $1,132,004.01 $ 24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $795,000.00 $3,854,773.92


NAME


CERBT
Operations + 


15% Cash 
Policy Reserve


Bldg Fund
Operating 


Policy 
Reserve (25%)


Federal Loan 
(GO Bonds)


In-house 
Construction


Capital 
Improvements


State Loan 
#58330


State Loan 
#58830


Final Pymt


State Loan 
58340


State Loan 
58340 


Final Pymt


Capital and Debt 
Policy Reserve


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


Fund  76751 76752 76753 76754 76755 76756 76757 76758 76759 76760 76761 76762


Dep't  


7106


0100
7106


0200
7106


0300
7106


0400
7106


0500
7106


0600
7106


0700
7106


0800
7106


0900
7106


1000
7106


1100
7106


1200


FP1-Jul $15,296.65 $323,402.68 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $116,778.72 $1,124,193.31 $24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $677,993.40 $3,729,956.62


FP2-Aug $15,296.65 ($112,551.32) $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $116,778.72 $1,129,169.31 $24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $677,993.40 $3,298,978.62


FP3-Sept $18,172.41* $323,402.68 ($285,104.00) $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $115,770.45 $982,701.11 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $677,993.40 $3,066,416.17


FP4-Oct $18,349.70 $514,494.81 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $112,712.65 $816,902.52 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,041.47 $242,039.40 $3,089,387.82


FP5-Nov $18,349.70 $564,494.81 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $111,676.16 $659,247.52 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,041.47 $242,039.40 $2,980,696.33


FP6-Dec $18,342.92 $654,494.81 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $110,611.16 $835,553.28 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,041.47 $242,039.40 $3,245,937.09


FP7-Jan $18,342.92 $656,089.67 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $108,942.97 $837,565.71 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,769.21 $125,032.80 $3,131,597.33


FP8-Feb $18,342.92 $656,089.67 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $108,770.19 $759,956.53 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,769.21 ($5,521.20) $2,923,261.37


FP9-Mar $18,791.07 $498,217.61 $165,850.00 $399,812.00 $0.00 $132,702.31 $416,403.04 $1,399.25 $24,750.00 $1,938.88 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $804,505.30 $3,103,027.25


FP10-Apr $18,791.07 $498,217.61 $165,850.00 $399,812.00 $0.00 $132,702.31 $416,403.04 $1,399.25 $24,750.00 $1,938.88 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $804,505.30 $3,103,027.25


FP11-May $21,481.71 $558,217.61 $165,850.00 $399,812.00 $0.00 $109,865.31 $395,351.55 $1,399.25 $24,750.00 $1,938.88 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $804,505.30 $3,119,138.76


FP12-Jun $21,481.71 $303,535.31 $165,850.00 $399,812.00 $0.00 $104,315.49 $529,149.40 $23,699.25 $24,750.00 $146,738.88 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $804,505.30 $3,159,804.49


FP 13 
(FINAL)


(6/30 value is 
estimated)


$0.00


Beginning balances:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


4/5/2014 Initial CERBT Contribution: $14,500
4/5/2014 FY 2014-15 CERBT Contributions: 
$3,334.01
6/4/2015 FY 2014-15 CERBT Contribution #2: 


 





		Item V-D Actual v Budgeted - 4Q 2014-15

		Item V-D.1 - Budget variances as of 6-30-2015 (100%)

		Sheet1



		Item V-D.2 - Capital Budget variances as of 06-30-2015 (100%)

		Table 2. FY14Q3



		Item V-D.3 - Fund and Loan Balances as of 6-30-2015 (100%)

		Table 3



		Item V-D.4 - County Acctg Funds

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : August 6, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  REJECTION OF CLAIM BY DEBORAH WALLER, CLAIM 2015-03  
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Reject the second Claim of Deborah Waller, Claim 2015-


03.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  not significant.   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On March 6, 2014, the District rejected a claim from Deborah Waller, a customer of the 
District who resides at 17410 Guernewood Lane, Guerneville.  Ms. Waller, through the 
communications of her attorney Mr. John Stringer, claimed the Guernewood Lane 
project, completed in May 2014 and an element of the 2014 CIP, harmed her property 
and she wanted some unknown remedy performed by the District.   
 
In approximately August 2014, Mr. Stringer, representing Ms. Waller, filed litigation 
against the District regarding this claim.  That litigation was dismissed shortly after that 
because the plaintiff did not pay the filing fee.   
 
On July 17, 2015, the District received by fax the attached letter from Mr. Stringer with 
the assertion that this letter should be considered a claim against the District.  The 
letter states no damages amount; just requests a phone call to Ms. Walller.   
 
On July 27, 2015, I called Ms. Waller using the phone number that we have on file as 
requested by the letter.  My call was not answered and I was forwarded to a phone 
message system where I left a message that I was responding to the letter and 
requesting that she call the District back.  As of the date of this report we have not 
received a response.   
 
We feel the District has no recourse other than to reject this claim, if it is a valid claim, 
for a number of reasons - a claim for this was rejected over one year ago, the claimant 
has never responded to the District's many efforts to communicate with her, the claim  
is insufficient in stating the claim, for starters.  We are not even certain that Mr. 
Stringer represents Ms. Waller in these communications.   
 
While we are recommending rejecting this claim at this time, we remain open to 
meeting with Ms. Waller to resolve whatever issues she has with the Guernewood Lane 
project.  However, this project has been completed for some time, we don't know what 
Ms. Waller would want done, and it's uncertain that the contractor would be willing to 
get involved at this late date.    









		Item V-E - Rejection of 2nd Deborah Waller Claim

		Meeting Date : August 6, 2014 



		Item V-E.1 Waller Claim Letter






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: August 6, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE 2014 - 2015 ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding the 2014 Annual 
Review. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District does an annual review each year at about this time of the year.  This is the 
third year of the new format (perhaps we shouldn't be calling it new anymore) and, as 
always it is still a work in progress and comments and suggestions are welcome.  
Periodic review of District activities is a good check on what we are doing and with 
Board concurrence, we will continue the practice.     
 







Exhibit A: Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual 
Review, Fiscal Year 2014-2015 


 
The annual review is a look back of the achievements of the 
past fiscal year and a look forward to what we are expecting 
for the coming fiscal year.   
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide 
its customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and 
cost-effective manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the 
community and environment.  The District provides water distribution and 
maintenance services to five townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO 
ENSURE EFFECTIVE UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
FY 2015 Achievements:   


 Fifth year that 3% increase to Base Rate and Water Usage Charges 
was approved; Third Year of 3% increase to Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge.   


 Resolution of USDA Refinancing Issue to District's benefit - additional 
$8,000/yr savings for first 19 years, $900,000 over life of bond. 


 Reserve Policy met by FY 2015 Budget. 
 Renewed lease for cell tower site on Mt. Jackson on favorable terms.  
 Drought water use restrictions resulted in lower water sales and 


revenues; budget can absorb this.     
 
FY 2016 Projections: 


 Investigate/monitor need for rate increase in May 2016, effective July 
2016.  Longer term impact of reduced water sales unknown; with 
return to near normal sales, District should be close to $500,000 
target for CIP funding.  


 Review financial planning model to ensure it is meeting current 
financial planning needs; revise where appropriate.   


 Meet Reserve Policy with FY 2016 Budget.   
 


GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE 
WATER WITH FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, 
MANAGED AND MAINTAINED TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2014-2015  2 
 
FY 2015 Achievements: 


 Compliance with California Department of Public Health (DPH) 
regulations achieved.  Annual report submitted according to schedule.   


 Stage I of Water Shortage Contingency Plan adopted in August 2014 in 
response to State Water Board direction; revised in May 2015 again in 
response to State Water Board direction.  District is doing better than 
targets.   


 2015 CIP (Old Monte Rio Road) completed; NOC in May 2015. 
 2016 CIP (Canyon One Road, Rio Nido) award of contract in May 2015.   
 Review of 2014-2019 CIP started in November 2015, CIP 


Subcommittee reviewed CIP process, recommended revised 2016-
2023 CIP with River Road Project added and moved to top.  


 Total Leaks for calendar year 2014 at 154 (target was 120 :-(). 
 System leakage at 21% (June 2015) (target was 23%). 
 Entered into agreement with Open Spatial for online, automated 


system map; map is operational.   
 Purchased correlation equipment to trace and identify leaks in pipe 


segments.    
 
FY 2016 Projections: 
 


 FY 2017 CIP (Old River Road) in design for construction in summer/fall 
of 2016. Award of contract in May/June 2016.   


 Total leaks for calendar year 2015 at 140. 
 System leakage at 21%.  Use correlation equipment on regular basis 


to identify and fix leaks.   
 Increase use of automated map.   
 Use experience of Stage I water shortage in revision of Urban Water 


Management Plan (UWMP).   
  


GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS 
FOR ALL REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
FY 2015 Achievements:   
 


 Emergency Action Plan was reviewed and updated in October 2014.     
 Attended local emergency preparation meeting in November 2014 with 


Cal Water, Russian River Utilities and Russian River Fire Protection 
District. 


 Attended 2014 Flood Preparation meeting in February 2015 (December 
meeting was postponed because of potential flooding on meeting day.   


 Attended meeting on community response training by Fire Protection 
District.  


 
 
FY 2016 Projections: 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2014-2015  3 
 


 Update of Emergency Action Plan in October 2015. 
 Participate in County Emergency Operations communications/meetings 


in 2015. 
 Continue efforts to communicate with local agencies re emergency 


preparedness.    
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
FY 2015 Achievements: 
 


 Hired first new employee since 2008.   
 Field staff oversight of 2015 CIP. 
 33 in-house projects totaling 981.5 man-hours.   
 Completed new 5-year contract with represented employees. 


  
FY 2016 Projections: 
 


 Continue staff training efforts. 
 Oversee completion of 2016 CIP construction, design of 2017 CIP. 
 Continue focus on in-house projects. 
 Participate in more webinars and workshops. 


 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC AND GOVERNMENTAL 
OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND EDUCATION 
 
FY 2015 Achievements: 
 


 Meeting summary sent to local media on monthly basis.   
 Website updated on at least monthly basis. 
 Continued display in lobby that shows examples of pipes that are being 


replaced by capital projects – good public response to this.   
 Making effort to provide outreach with local Chambers regarding the 


drought response. 
 Making monthly reports to State on required drought response 


information.   
 
FY 2016 Projections: 
 


 Continue meeting summary.   
 Look for opportunities to provide community leadership/participation 


on water-related issues.   
 Continue to look for ways to make website more useful. 
 Participate in statewide and regional drought responses, if it continues.   
 Submit 2015 Urban Water Management Plan Update by July 2016.   


 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2014-2015  4 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND 
INFORMATION 
 
FY 2015 Achievements: 
 


 Used subcommittee approach to review CIP 
 No activity on the Website section for Board members begun; do we 


need this?  
 


 
FY 2016 Projections: 
 


 Review sections of Policies and Procedures for revision. 
 Evaluate facility tour opportunities - correlation equipment 


demonstration. 
   


 





		Item V-F - 2015 Annual Review

		Meeting Date: August 6, 2015 



		Item V-F.1 - 2015 Annual Review Report






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: August 6, 2015  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in June  were 16,377 units (37.6 AF, Monte Rio 


cycle) and production was 61.2 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production were 
lower (50.7 AF and 75.6 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage increased to 21.4, but 
still near the historic low.   The reduction from June 2013, the State Board standard, was 
over 29% and May was 33% below May 2013; we are well below the State mandate of 
16%.  GPCD for June was 71.4.  Figure 1A is a bar chart that shows monthly water 
production compared to prior years and the State Board target - production in the past few 
months is well below prior years and targets.   


 
3. Leaks:  In June we had 10 total leaks and spent 48 man-hours on them.   Those are the 


fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and fewer leaks and man-hours 
compared to June one year ago (13 leaks, 63 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and main 
leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.     


   
4. Russian River Flow:  Flow in the Russian River is similar to recent years.  Figure 3 shows 


that flow is a little lower than last year currently.                
 


5. 2016 CIP:   We are moving forward with Piazza Construction doing the 2016 CIP on 
Canyon 1 Road in Rio Nido.   


   
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates were approved in July.  The 


direct install program is available for Guerneville sewer customers and should become 
available shortly for Monte Rio customers when grant money reportedly awarded to the 
Sonoma County Water Agency is handed over; customers are being advised to get on the 
waiting list if they are interested.  


 
7. In-House Construction Projects:  Four in-house construction projects were reported in 


July: replaced 180 ft of one inch main and 2 services on Vine Street in Monte Rio (112 man-
hours), abandoned 100 ft of pipe on Hay Lane in Rio Nido (25 man-hours), removed six ft of 
old pipe; replaced with straight section on Neely Rd (25.5 man-hours), and working with 
customer's contractor, cooperated in replacement of 240 ft of 2 inch pipe, 2 inch blowoff, 
and replaced 3 services on Montesan Ave., near Neely Rd (54 man-hours).   







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
August 6, 2015 
 


 
 
8. Gantt Chart:   The Gantt Chart for August has a green marking for the Urban Water 


Management Plan for August - it's not due until next July.  We missed July - the annual 
review is supposed to happen then and it's on the agenda for this meeting.        


 
 
 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
if


fe
re


n
ce


 (
%


)


Sales


Production


%Difference







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
August 6, 2015 
 


Figure 1A.  April through September Monthly Production 
Sweetwater Springs Water District


0


20


40


60


80


100


120


April May June July August September


M
o


n
th


ly
 P


ro
d


u
ct


io
n


 (
A


F
)


2004


2009


2013


80%13


2014


2015


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


Sep-
13


Jan-
14


May-
14


Sep-
14


Jan-
15


May-
15


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 4 
August 6, 2015 
 


 
 
 
 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2015 Compared to Earlier Years 
and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated July 29, 2015


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


1-
Apr


8-
Apr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-
M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3-
Ju


n


10
-J


un


17
-J


un


24
-J


un
1-


Ju
l


8-
Ju


l


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5-
Aug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug


2-
Sep


9-
Sep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


F
lo


w
 (


cf
s)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2014


2015


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 FY17+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2016 CIP Design


        2016 CIP Award of Contract


        2016 CIP Construction Starts


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Jul-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest ??


Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: August 6, 2015 



